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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
City of Burlington, Community & Economic Development Office
Inclusionary Zoning Ordinance
November XX, 2015

The City of Burlington, Community & Economic Development Office (CEDO) requests research and policy proposals regarding Inclusionary Zoning (IZ) from qualified consultants as the City evaluates its existing IZ ordinance. In response to input from affordable housing advocates, developers, and planners, the City is in the formative stage of reexamining its long-standing IZ policy to ensure that long-term affordability, economic integration, and stewardship remain hallmarks of the City’s ordinance. Testimony submitted and research conducted in developing the City’s Housing Action Plan underscored the importance of inclusive housing while also raising concerns about the impact the current IZ ordinance is having on new housing construction.  

SCOPE OF WORK

1. CEDO seeks impartial research on the efficacy of the City’s current IZ ordinance, including research into national best practices and peer cities applicable to the Burlington Market.
2. An evaluation of and report on the impact of the IZ ordinance on new housing construction, including affordable, workforce, and market rate units.
3. Interviews with area affordable and market-rate housing developers to understand the value of the IZ Ordinance and its impact on housing development in the City of Burlington.
4. The identification of changes to the Ordinance that would render it a more effective tool for meeting both low- and moderate-income and workforce housing needs.
5. The analysis should include, but not be limited to, the following questions:
a. What is the appropriate unit threshold for the Burlington market to trigger IZ?
b. Under what circumstances, if any, should a payment-in-lieu of producing IZ units be permitted?
i. What models/policies exist for investment of fee-in lieu funds? (Types of housing investments/program funding, who oversees expenditure of funding, public and private roles in determining how funds are invested?)
ii. What is a reasonable and defensible payment-in-lieu amount?
c. Should off-site IZ units be allowed and under what conditions? Are off-site units always provided through new construction/rehab or are fee-in-lieu funds invested to subsidize/convert existing units to affordable units?
d. What are the industry standards with regard to the gross floor area of IZ units?
i. How have IZ ordinances responded to trends in micro-units, short term housing, and shared housing?
e. Can the City ensure that developers that meet the IZ requirement on-site can actually benefit from the density and lot coverage bonuses as-of-right?
f. Is there a best practice to designating IZ rental and/or ownership units at certain income levels?
g. Should the ordinance continue to require affordability in perpetuity? If not, what other approaches ensure long-term affordability and stewardship?
h. How has the adoption of the IZ ordinance in 1990 impacted Burlington’s housing production, affordability, and density specifically on the waterfront and downtown?
i. What models exist for the City to monitor and enforce IZ compliance for rental units in partnership with a nonprofit?
j. How do communities incorporate “workforce” housing needs into IZ ordinances? How is workforce defined/what are the income limits associated with this audience?
k. [bookmark: _GoBack]Do, or how do, other cities incorporate student populations into  IZ ordinances?
l. Should IZ policy apply to purpose-built student housing?
6. Based on the analysis and interviews, identify recommended approaches/strategies/best practices that the City could incorporate into a revised IZ ordinance, if recommended.

RFP SUBMITTAL AND SELECTION PROCESS

RFP Proposals must include the following:

Qualifications of the company making the proposal, with an emphasis on housing and zoning policy research;
Detailed proposed work plan; 
Detailed proposed timeline of tasks, outcomes and deliverables; 
Cost for providing consulting services.

Selection Process

Proposals shall be evaluated by an internal team. The team shall evaluate all proposals and select the winning proposal within 45 days of the deadline. The team reserves the right to select none of the proposals and issue another RFP. Proposals shall not exceed $20,000.00.


For additional information on the City’s IZ ordinance, please see the following links:

· City of Burlington Inclusionary Zoning Ordinance, Appendix A, Article 9, Part 1
· City of Burlington master planning document, planBTV, page 61
· Downtown Housing Strategy Report, page 38

Proposals are due by X:XX p.m., DAY, MONTH XX, 2015. Please ONLY SEND APPLICATIONS BY EMAIL. For further information on this RFP, please contact Todd Rawlings at 652-4209 or by email at trawlings@burlingtonvt.gov.
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